iix Cox Street should be given special attention to
improve 1its streetscape to better reflect the
character of Hamilton and its importance as a
through route.

5.2.5 UCl Area A Melville Oval (Level 3)

Description

The focus for this Conservation Area is obviously the
oval. The land, originally reserved for market purposes,
was too swampy. About the turn of the century there were

moves -to improve the area. The beautification scheme
included ground works, extensive planting and the
construction of buildings, gates and a fence. The

beautification scheme has been eroded over the years by
ad hoc "improvements" most of which were the removal of
plantings and to accommodate increased traffic.

Within the oval's grounds there are several notable
trees. The most striking are the Washingtonia robusta,
Mexican or Washington palms. These trees are landmarks
and relate to the significant avenue of Washingtonia
robusta, Mexican or Washington Palm, in Alexandra Aveune,
one in the garden o¢of The Bungalow, 8 Dryden Street, and
to others elsewhere in the town. There are various other
trees some of which are in very poor health, particularly
the Calodendrum capense, Cape Chestnut, the only example
found in Hamilton. On the other hand the Waterhousea
floribunda, Weeping Myrtle, which is next to the Brown
Street fence, is in good condition and could be used as a
species for further planting. There are also two Quercus
robur, English 0Oaks, which are reasonable. Improved
planting along this side of the oval would benefit the
streetscape. Because of the overhead powerlines the
planting should be inside the Oval fence.

On the other side of the Oval, there is a drinking water
fountain erected by the Caledonian Society in 1910 for
children, no doubt prompted by the beautification scheme.
It is surrounded by several trees; Quercus palustris, Pin
Oak; Prunus cerasifera 'Nigra', Purple Cherry Plum and
Aesculus hippocastanum, Horse Chestnut, the most notable
tree in this part of the Oval. Other trees which are
notable are a Eucalptus ficifolia, Red Flowering Gum; the
Acmena smithii, Lilly Pilly and Arbutus unedo, Strawberry
Tree, either side of the Thompson Street memorial
entrance gates.

Hamilton Conservation Study 136



The trees mentioned above almost certainly date from the
beautification scheme at the beginning of this century.

The have a considerable collective significance. Their
conditions are almost all good. Their retention is
paramount.

In a sense the oval 1s based on Lonsdale Street which
seems to have been narrowed for the sake of the oval.
This flat area is now used for fire training and hose
drying. There is an avenue of Ulmus X hollandica, Dutch
elms, outside the fence with angle parking  in between
them. See the schedule of street trees for comments on
their size and condition and for recommendations on their
management. The cream brick public tollets are now the
major feature of this section of the park. There is no
street tree planting on the opposite side of the road
which has become something of a take-away food "strip".

Avenues of trees in Lonsdale Street stretch away from the
oval in both directions. On the east the elms continue
and are interplanted with Eucalyptus citriodora, Lemon
Scented Gums. To the west there is a significant tree, a
Eucalyptus globulus subsp. bicostata, Eurabbie. (295)
This tree which is extremely old and the only one left of
an avenue which stretched as far &as Kennedy Street may
have been sent to Hamilton by Baron Ferdinand von Mueller
from the Botanic Gardens in Melbourne. Close by there
are four Phoenix canariensis, Canary Island Palms, which
would date from early this century and are likely to be
part of the beautification of Melville oval.

Traffic is a major issue in this part of Lonsdale Street
being between two roundabouts and on the through route
from east to west of the town. Its improvement as an
avenue would ameliorate the blight caused by the traffic.
The roundabouts, if they are to be permanent, could be
better designed. This part of the city does not show off
Hamilton to its best advantage which 1s all the more
ironic since the Tourist information Bureau is located
under one of Hamilton's most significant trees.

295 The precise identification of this specimen is
uncertain until more material can be examined. It is
most likely subspecies bicostata but this subspecies
intergrates with subspecies pseudoglobulus, Victorian
Eurabbie, within which this specimen might fall. It
is not E. globulus subsp. globulus, Tasmanian Blue
Gum.
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The land rises away from the oval towards the Shire Hall
in Market Place and St Ronan's at 5 Dryden Street. The
Manor House, also in Dryden Street, has enjoyed the view
down and across the town since 1862, The most dominant
building in this Conservation Area 1is the former
Alexandra Ladies College. Its curtilage has been
seriously compromised by the construction only a few
years ago of several two storey units. ~The units could
not be described as good infill architecture. Two
memorials, one to Major Mitchell and one to the soldiers
who fell in the Boer War complete the picture. The
latter is associated with two Quercus robur, English Oak.
(296) This whole residential area now forms a backdrop
to the Melville Oval Conservation Area. The radial
pattern of streets is an important characteristic of the
area which distinguishes it from the rest of Hamilton.
The planting in these streets 1s mediocre and does not
date from the beautification scheme. Bluestone gutters
survive.

History

This area takes its name from the sporting precinct which
became the chief recreational reserve of the town and was
described in 1929 as ‘one of the best outside the
metropolis'. (297) It was planned originally as a Market
Sguare but was never used for that purpose. (298) The
Hamilton Grandstand and Band Rotunda (since relocated to
the Botanic gardens) at the Melville Oval are examples of
a Federation era recreation complex and illustrate the
importance of sport and recreation in this typical

Victorian country town. The name of the oval has
historical associations with its developer, W H Melville,
barrister, pastoralist, sportsman, and well known

Hamilton Councillor and townsman. (299)

Notable buildings in the area include the Shire of Dundas
offices, a reminder of Hamilton's earliest days when the
town was a member of the Dundas Road District prior to
the formation of the municipality. It is the site, also,
of the former Alexandra College for Ladies in Milton
Street, opened in 1874 from the designs of W H Ellerker,

296 This was a popular view in early twentieth century
postcards held both at the Hamilton Historical
Society and in the Picture Collection at the State
Library of Victoria.

297 Garden, p 183, 221, 223.

298 1Ibid.

299 1Ibid., pp 122-3.
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who also designed Hamilton Boys' College. (300)
Alexandra College, guaranteed to “turn out gentlewomen'
(301) was taken over the Presbyterian Church in 1954 and
in 1962 amalgamated with Hamilton. College. In 1972 it
became the Alexandra House Reception Rooms. (302) In
Brown Street there is a memorial to Major Mitchell, the
first white man to pass through the future site of
Hamilton. There 1is also a Boer War Memorial.

Statement of Significance

The Melville Oval has local significance because of its
historical associations as Hamilton's chief recreational
reserve, planned originally as a Market Square but never
used for that purpose. The early twentieth century
beatification scheme was a major municiple achievement
and commemorates one of Hamilton's most distinguished
servants and citizens, William H Melville. The Edwardian
grandstand adds grace and dignity to the reserve.

The  Oval illustrates the importance of sport and
recreation in this typical ~ Victorian country town.
Notable buildings in the area include the Shire of Dundas
offices and the former Alexandra College, a. companion
girls' school to Hamilton and Western District College
for Boys, with which it was amalgamated in 1862. Nearby
plantings support the wide .range of notable trees within
the Oval reserve,

Recommendations

To conserve and enhance the special character of the
Botanic gardens Area it is recommended that:

i the existing original planting within Melville
Oval should be retained, any missing trees
replanted and its theme extended,

ii the wvarious monuments and memorials within
Melville Oval should be retained and properly
conserved,

[
-

the wvarious monuments and memorials outside
Melville Oval should be retained and properly
conserved with their associated planting,

300 Ibid., pp 89, 224, 238.
301 Argus, 28 March 1885.
302 Garden, p 238.
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iv the variety of fences around Melville Oval should
be reduced and any new fence should be either a
reconstruction of the original ¢1910 type or
either a high or low level capped corrugated iron
fence,

v where security i1s need a high fence should be
used or a low fence with a wire fence behind it
disguised by hedges,

vi adjacent to Melville Oval, the row of Ulmus X
hollandica, Dutch Elms in Lonsdale Street should
be retained and there should be similar street

;.trees planted on the other side of the road,

Viﬂmstreet trees around Melville Oval should be
traditional,

iix traditional paving and guttering should continue
to be used,

ix a strict policy of minimal signage be followed,

5.2.6 UCl Area F St Ronan's (Level 3)

Description

The focus for the St Ronan's area is the house of that
name at 5 Dryden Street. The large house has brooded
over the town since the 1860s and once enjoyed a much
larger garden. It sits on the rise above the Shire Hall
and Offices. There are several other notable houses and
the character of the area is predominantly domestic. The
gardens of the houses, while typical of their wvarious
periods, are of a high standard. The best garden which
still enjoys its original layout and probably some of the
first plantings is The Bungalow, 6 Dryden Street. (303)
It has the notable Washingtonia robusta, Mexican or
Washington Palm, the highest in Hamilton.

The three other notable trees in the St Ronan's area are
the Magnolia grandiflora, Bull Bay, at the Manor House, 4
Dryden Street; the Waterhousea floribunda, Weeping

303 The present owners hold a photograph of the house
which must have been taken soon after its
construction and which shows the original garden
being laid out.
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